M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 15, 2004
1:35 PM

TAPES

SFC-04 # 39, Side A
SFC 04 # 39, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Gary WI ken convened the neeting at approxinmately 1:35 PM
PRESENT

Senat or Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Con Bunde, Vice Chair
Senator Ben Stevens
Senat or Fred Dyson
Senat or Donny d son

Al so Attending: Senat or John Cowdery; Senator Hollis French;
Senator G etchen Quess; Senator Ralph Seekins; Senator Bert
St edman; Senator Gary Stevens; Senator Tom WAagoner; BOB STORER,
Executive Director, Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation; BOB
BARTHOLOVEW Chief Financial Oficer, Alaska Pernmanent Fund
Cor por ati on;

Attending via Tel econference: There were no teleconference
partici pants.

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

SJR 18- CONST. AM PF APPROPS/ | NFLATI ON- PROOFI NG

The Conmittee heard fromthe Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation. The
bill was held in Commttee.

#SJR18
CS FOR SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 18( STA)
Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of

Al aska relating to and limting appropriations fromthe A aska
per manent fund based on an averaged percent of the fund narket

SFC- 03 (1) 03/ 15/ 04



value to protect the fund frominflation and assure that the
real value of the fund will be preserved over the long term

This was the first hearing for this resolution in the Senate
Fi nance Conmittee.

Co-Chair WIlken stated this resolution, sponsored by the
Legi sl ati ve Budget and Audit Commttee by request and, "proposes a
constitutional anendnent that changes the nmanagenent of the
Per manent Fund. The resolution establishes an annual payout limt
of five percent of the total narket value of the fund and that
mar ket value wll be based on a five-year average. The
constitutional amendment proposed would be in front of the voters
for a Novenber 2004."

BOB STORER, Executive Director, Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation
gave a presentation titled, "Al aska Pernmanent Fund, Senate Fi nance
Commttee, A Fund overview and discussion of POW", as follows
[copy on file.]

"To benefit all generations.."
AS 37.13.020(1)
.the Fund shoul d provide a neans of conserving a portion
of the State's revenue frommneral resources to benefit
al | generations of Al askans.

M. Storer assured the proposed constitutional anmendment addresses
this issue.

Per manent Fund mar ket val ue
Four-year change in realized and reserved accounts
6/30/00 $3.0 billion realized inconme account
$23.5 billion reserved account (principal
& unrealized gains)
$26.5 billion total

6/ 30/ 01 $2.4 billion realized i ncone account
$22.5 billion reserved account
$24.8 billion total

6/ 30/ 02 $1.1 billion realized i ncone account
$22.4 billion reserved account

$23.5 billion total

6/ 30/ 03 $0.1 realized i ncone account
$24.1 billion reserved account
$24.2 billion

M. Storer divided the Fund into two conponents: principal and
earnings reserve. He further divided the principal into three

SFC- 03 (2) 03/ 15/ 04



conponents: contributions frommneral wealth, inflation proofing
and legislative appropriations from the earnings reserve fund,
whi ch he noted have occurred on several occasions. He noted the
principal is conprised of approxi mately equal anpbunts of the three
af orenenti oned conponents.

M. Storer stated the anounts listed in the presentation reflect
the "recent” Attorney Ceneral's opinion "which has unrealized gains
or losses excluded from the earnings reserve fund." He indicated
t he bal ances listed on June 30, 2000 were al nost $20 billion "in
pure principal as | defined it" to include the three conponents of
m neral wealth, inflation proofing and special appropriations. He
explained the approximately $3 billion balance represents
unreal i zed gains or appreciation. He informed that the earnings
reserve of the Fund has di mnished over tine due to the significant
bear market. He stressed the inportance of exercising discipline in
years of strong earnings. He stated that the benefit of discipline
has been denonstrated in that although earnings dimnished, the
Fund was able to pay dividends and also inflation-proof the Fund
for three years.

Fund's historical asset allocation
[ G aph showi ng the percentage of the assets each year
from 1978 through 2002 in the follow ng categories: US
Fi xed Income, US Stocks, Non-US Fixed I|ncone, Non-US
stocks; Real Estate.]

M. Storer noted this graph denonstrates how the asset allocation
of the Permanent Fund has changed over tine. He stated the current
payout nethodol ogy is based on realized income. He defined realized
i ncone as dividends, interest, cash flowfromreal estate, and "any
profits the managers may take." He stressed the current nanagenent
nmet hods were appropriate during the early years of the fund, in the
| ate 1970s and early 1980s when the Fund was excl usively invested
in fixed 1income securities and bonds. He specified the
characteristic of bonds "is virtually all of the noney that your
earn is through cash fl ow and not appreciation of assets". He told
of the diversification of investnents beginning in 1983 and noted
the Fund is no longer invested to achieve a |large cash flow but
rather nost of the returns from the Fund are represented in
appreci ation.

Trust ees' proposal
The APFC Board of Trustees propose a constitutional
amendnment to |imt annual fund spending to five percent
of the Fund's total market val ue.

POW

SFC- 03 (3) 03/ 15/ 04



M. Storer stated that as a result of the changes in investnents,
the Corporation is recommendi ng changi ng managenent to a payout of
mar ket val ue nethodol ogy. In any given year, he stated, this system
woul d al | ow appropriation of no nore than five percent of the total
val ue of the assets.

M. Storer explained the decision to reconmend limtation of
spending to five percent. He told of the study of historical data,
as well as prospective aspects and that the Trustees are

"confortable" the fund would earn an average of five percent in the
future. He qualified this is not realized earnings, but rather a
reflection of appreciation. He enphasized the calculation of the
val ue of the Fund would be a five-year average, rather than annual.
He stated this nmethod of managi ng the fund would provide "greater
predictability and less volatility" in payouts.

What i s POW?

POW, or "Percent of Market Value," is a formula that
limts spending to a set percent of a fund's total market
val ue.

The set percent is based on the expected difference
bet ween total annual return on investnents and the rate
of inflation.

8% proj ected average annual return
- 3% proj ected average annual inflation*
5% maxi nrum annual sust ai nabl e payout

*retained in the Fund for inflation proofing

M. Storer gave the historical average earnings of the Fund at
ei ght percent, and stated the Trustees' anticipate this average
woul d continue. He reiterated the Trustees' "confort" in allow ng
payouts based on a five percent annual real rate of return. He
noted the actual earning predictions are 7.6 percent nomnal rate
of return, although the Corporation's consultant predicts an annual
inflation rate of 2.6 percent over the next few years. He reported
that inflation is currently slightly above two percent and woul d
increase slightly over tine.

Fund performance

e Historically, Fund returns would have hit their |ong-
termreal rate of return target.

 Fund returns going forward, after adjusting for
inflation, are expected to neet the target payout over

SFC- 03 (4) 03/ 15/ 04



tinme.

FY 94-03 historica
2.5% I nflation
5.3% Real return
7.8% Tot al

Long-term proj ected
3.0% I nflation
5.0% Real return
8. 0% Tot al

(periods endi ng June 30)

M. Storer inforned that during the previous ten years, the Fund
experienced a great appreciation in the equity market val ue due to
an unsustai nabl e bull market. However, he stressed, the Fund al so
experienced significant reduction due to the "one of the nore
severe down markets in the last 100 years." Despite this, he said,
the Fund's returns were "essentially nornalized" and realized a 7.8
percent nomnal rate of return. He qualified that inflation was
only 2.5 percent, and therefore the Fund achieved a 5.3 percent
rate of return.

Rol ling 10-year real return
[ G aph showi ng annualized real rate of return from 1994
t hr ough 2003 varying from bel ow ten percent to above five
percent. ]

M. Storer explained these calculations are nade every year and
conpared to the previous ten years. He pointed out the Fund has
achieved earnings of at |l|east five percent every year and
reiterated that the legislatures’ discipline to not over-
appropriate in higher earning years has allowed dividends and
inflation-proofing in lower earning years. He predicted that if
this discipline were not exercised during 1999 and 2000, the
earni ngs woul d have been overspent and the Fund would currently be
in a deficit. He estinmated that a worst-case scenario would result
in a one or two percent rate of return.

Real i zed incone v. market val ue
[ G aph conparing the percent change in value of annual
mar ket val ue and realized incone i.e. the status quo, for
FY 83 though FY 03]

M. Storer indicated this graph denonstrates the volatility between
the current formula and the proposed POW formul a. He pointed out
these figures do not represent the anount the Fund earned every
year, but rather "the rate of change in any given year". He
qualified that the significant "spike up" in FY 96 was not actually

SFC- 03 (5) 03/ 15/ 04



an 80 percent rate of return, but rather the realized incone
exceeded that of the previous year by over 80 percent. He
reenphasi zed the POW nethod would result in less volatility and
greater predictability.

Wiy do we need POW?
For the present

e Ensure the option of an annual payout
e Make payout anobunts nore stable fromyear to year

« Muke payout nethod conpatible wth investnent
strat egy
For the future

e Prevent overspending in the good years
e Mintain purchasing power for the entire Fund

M. Storer stressed this proposal provides the option of payouts by
the |l egislature, although payouts are not mandatory.

What are Al askans aski ng?
e« WII this change | eave the principal unprotected?

M. Storer noted that POW would essentially renove the term
"principal", although over the long term this nmethod woul d ensure
t he purchasi ng power of the Fund.

* How will POW affect ny dividend?

M. Storer noted the Trustees' concerns are focused on the val ue of
the fund and the ability for payouts. However, he noted nost
Al askan's concerns related to the inpact on their dividends. He
answered that the dividend formula would not have to be changed,
al t hough the Trustees' support such a change. He recalled the ten
percent chance in any given year that no funds woul d be avail abl e
to pay a dividend under the current dividend formula. He reiterated
that changing the dividend fornula to POW woul d provi de greater
predictability and less volatility.

e |s POW a raid on the Pernmanent Fund?

M. Storer assured this proposal is not a raid on the Fund, but
rather a limt on how nmuch could be appropriated. He understood
sone to disagree this proposal would result in such a raid, but
stressed that the matter would not be raised if the State was not
currently in a "fiscal problens.” He stressed these are parall el
i ssues.

SFC- 03 (6) 03/ 15/ 04



Wiy fix the Permanent Fund if it isn't broken?

M. Storer opined that the system has been "broken" for sone tine.
He remarked that the bull narket amassed a poor payout program He
war ned that the cost of not changing to a POW net hod of nmanagi ng
the fund would result in lost incone and "dislocations to those
expecting dividends." He reiterated that the current payout system
was appropriate for the way the Fund was invested in the 1970s but
is no | onger appropriate.

M. Storer furthered that investing in equities is not "double
inflation proofing”. He explained that the Trustees have invested
the Fund in equities that would increase over tine well in excess
of inflation. However, he stated that once a nanager sells an
equity stock, such as General Electric, the value is converted to
reali zed i ncone distributed under the current nmanagenment system He
pointed out that if the change were nade to a POW nethod, this
woul d not occur.

Senat or Bunde questioned the w tness' assertion that the formula
used for cal cul ati ng dividends woul d not have to be changed if POW
wer e adopted. He understood that the current fornmula is based on
the earnings of the previous five years and the POW woul d not
cal cul ate earni ngs as such

M. Storer explained that the current dividend fornmula is based on
realized inconme only. He clarified that nmanagenment of the Fund
could be converted to POW and the current dividend cal cul ation
formula could be retained. He stated that if the dividend
cal cul ation became greater than five percent a "wall" would be
encountered. He noted this does not occur often. He enphasized that
in a series of years with strong earnings payouts could be in
excess of five percent, at which tinme the "fire wall" would be
reached. He advised that the fornulas be the sanme, and that the
current payout fornmula is in conflict with the POW formul a.

Senat or Bunde relayed criticisns that the anmount of dividends woul d
di m ni sh over tinme under a POW system Therefore, he asked if the
current formula used to cal cul ate the anount of dividends woul d be
nore volatile if maintained in conjunction with a POW nethod to
cal cul ate the anmount of funds avail able to pay dividends.

M. Storer responded that the current fornmula is very volatile and
enphasi zed the possibility that no funds woul d be avail able to pay
dividends in the event of an extrene bear market.

BOB BARTHOLOVEW Chief Financial Oficer, Al aska Permanent Fund
Corporation, testified that were a POW adopted and the current

SFC- 03 (7) 03/ 15/ 04



formula for calculating the anount of dividends were naintained,
t he dividend payouts woul d be the same and would remain vol atile.
He expressed the challenge for the public is determning how
changes woul d af fect the dividend and how to expend the earni ngs of
the Fund. He infornmed that the current fornmula could be retained,
although this would require the Corporation to maintain two
"separate sets of books" to account the POW nethod and the fornmula
currently used to determ ne the amobunt of dividends. He admitted
t he managers of the Corporation would prefer not to do this.

M. Storer remarked, "The bigger the fund the greater your earnings
conpound: ten percent over $20 is snaller than ten percent over $25
billion." Therefore, he stated that any tine increnental incone is
utilized for purposes such as governnent services earnings woul d be
conpounded on a slightly smaller fund. He surmsed a "snall
di m ni shnent” on the value of the dividend would occur, but
enphasi zed this exists with the current formula as well.

SENATOR RALPH SEEKI NS asked if the significant increase of realized
income that occurred in 1996 was a result of Fund nanagenent
deci si ons.

M. Storer replied that the Trustees nade the decision that
affected the realized incone. He described the two conponents of
i nvestnents: active managenent and passive managenent, which he
clarified as the index fund. He explained that the Fund was
significantly invested in an index fund designed to replicate the
S&P 500 i ndex, which has "no market timng whatsoever”. During the
bul | mar ket , he stated t hat t he Trust ees di scussed
"intergenerational equity" and the concern that the passive
investnments would continue to grow to the benefit of future
generations but not for current Alaskans. He relayed that the
Trustees determned to institute a nethodology to allow the current
generation to benefit from the bull mrket as well as future
generations and that sone profits should be realized from the
Fund's portfolio. He remarked this action resulted in a larger than
normal dividend for 1996.

Senator Seekins surmsed that wunder the current system the
Trustees therefore, could nmanipul ate the anmount of noney taken from
the principal of the Fund by directing the Fund managers what
investnments to sell and when to sell them

M. Storer replied that future Trustees could take profits after
"wel | thought out or other reasons".

Senat or Seeki ns expressed concern with the Trustee's ability to
"play God" in making such determ nations that would dramatically

SFC- 03 (8) 03/ 15/ 04



af fect dividend payouts. He asked if this ability would exist under
a POW system of managenent.

M. Storer responded the inpacts of such Trustee decisions would
| essen because the POW nethod would |imt the anmount avail able for
payouts. He added that the nobst inportant point of POW is
inflation proofing. He asserted that POW is a "positive nmanagenent
tool”, in that asset allocation decisions would be based solely on
maxi m zing the return on the Fund.

Senator Seekins stated that the current system prohibits the
principal to be spent. He asked if this is correct.

M. Storer answered, "principal is a notational nunber. It's an
accounting nunber"” that identifies contributions from m neral
weal th, inflation proofing and special appropriations. He stated
that the aforenentioned Attorney General opinion stated that the
amount available for distribution is the realized incone for the
Fund. He exanmpled a fund with a principal worth $23 billion, and

the value is $21 billion because the stock nmarket went down
dramatically, and realized incone is $1 billion. He noted that
under the current f or nul a, $1 billion is available for

distribution, even though the value of the fund is below the
pri nci pal .

Senat or Seekins applauded M. Storer for being a nonpartisan
manager of the Fund. Senator Seekins asked how the w tness would
pronote the current nmanagenent nethod if directed to do so.

M. Storer replied he would have "great difficulty”. He expressed
that POW not only nodernizes the payout nmethodol ogy, Generally
Accept ed Accounting Principles (GAAP) makes no distinction between
realized i nconme and appreciation. He inforned that nbst endownents
and foundations utilize a POW payout system He noted that
currently the Corporation is required to defend why the GAAP does
not apply to the Fund. He furthered that realized income could be
mani pul ated as wel | .

M . Barthol omew expl ai ned the resolution and the changes nmade in
the Senate State Affairs conmm ttee substitute.

M. Barthol onew inforned that Section 1 of the bill anmends Article
| X, Section 15 of the Alaska Constitution to provide for a POW
nmet hod. He pointed out the renoval of the term "principal",
stipulating that all the nonies would be considered as one fund. He
furthered that currently the Constitution directs that all incone
generated fromthe Fund be deposited into the State general fund,
unl ess ot herw se provided by |law. He noted that current statute has

SFC- 03 (9) 03/ 15/ 04



provided that all incone would be retained in the earnings reserve
account of the Fund. This resolution, he stated would
constitutionally require that all nonies remain in the Permanent
Fund until| appropri ated.

M. Barthol omew addressed the addition of subsection 15(b) to the
Constitution contained in Section 2 of the resolution. He explained
this | anguage inplenments the POW and places a spending limt on
the anount that could be withdrawn fromthe Fund of no nore than
five percent of the value of the Fund calculated on a five-year
average. He assured this five-year average would |imt the
volatility. He further noted that the |anguage contains a "Il ook-
back" provision requiring the five-year average cal cul ati on be made
on the first five of the previous six years. He explained this is
to provide the Legislature, when convening in January of each year,
wi th cal cul ati ons based on five conpl eted cal endar years. He stated
the Legislature would therefore be aware of the anount avail abl e
for appropriation in the upcom ng fiscal year.

M. Barthol onew said Section 3 of the resolution is technical and
specifies that if this anendnent were nmade to the Constitution, the
bal ance of the earnings reserve account woul d be deposited into the
Per manent Fund. He relayed this is to address the legalities of
whet her the existing earnings reserve account, with a bal ance of
"several billion dollars”, is actually part of the Pernmanent Fund
or the general fund.

M. Barthol omew summarized that Section 4 of the resolution
provi des that the proposed constitutional anmendnent woul d be pl aced
on the ballot of the next general election.

Senat or Bunde pointed out not all current Al askan residents were
present when the Al aska Permanent Fund or the dividend program was
establ i shed. He surm sed that "revisionist history" was occurring.
He rel ayed public coments expressing concern that the |l egislature
"keep their hands off the Permanent Fund”, and he attributed this
to over anbitious canpaigning by sone |egislators prom sing to do
so. He understood earnings of the Fund have been spent. He asked
for affirmation that during the first two years the Fund was in
exi stence, whether the earnings were deposited into the State
general fund and appropriated for government services.

M. Barthol omew answered this is correct and explained that al
earnings were deposited to the general fund and spent for
governnent services. In 1982, he inforned, the |egislature adopted
the current statute, which retained the earnings in an earnings
reserve account subject to |egislative appropriation.

SFC- 03 (10) 03/ 15/ 04



Senat or Bunde stated that approximately one-third of the bal ance of
the principal is from appropriations from the earnings reserve
account. He surm sed that this could technically be considered as
spendi ng of the earnings.

M. Barthol onew affirned the principal of the Fund now is about $23
billion, made up of the three aforenenti oned conponents. He stated
that the funds in the earnings reserve account were avail able for
appropriation and that the legislature has opted to transfer a
portion of those funds and deposit into the principal, nmaking them
no | onger avail abl e.

Senat or Bunde al so understood that "tens of mllions" of dollars
fromthe earnings reserve account have been appropriated for hold
harm ess provisions to offset reductions in public assistance
benefits that sone Al askans would incur as a result of the
i ncreased incone of the dividend.

M. Bartholonmew replied that currently, of the anount available
annual ly for expenditure, $35 mllion is appropriated for non-
dividend activities. He stated that $5 million is utilized to
operate the Permanent Fund Dividend Division, and the renainder is
appropriated to the Departnent of Corrections and to the Departnent
of Health and Social Services.

Senat or Bunde pointed out that a portion of the earnings of the
Fund have been spent in the past and continue to be appropriated by
the Legislature and therefore a proposal to spend a portion of
earnings for governnent services is not "sacred ground.”

SFC 04 # 39, Side B 02:22 PM

Senat or Bunde commented that M. Storer expressed he would find it
difficult to "sell"™ the current fornula because it differs from
accept abl e accounting practices. However, Senator Bunde renarked
that a "clear majority" of the public is resistant to the POW
proposal and woul d oppose it in an election. He expressed concern
about placing such a proposal on the ballot that is predestined to
fail.

M. Storer reported that when given an opportunity to explain the
POW nethod, |isteners support the proposal. He exanpled that straw
polls conducted of the conferees at the Conference of Al askans
first reflected opposition to a POW plan. However, the plan
recei ved hi gher support once the conferees understood the nethod.
He indicated that if the Legislature passed a resolution to amend

SFC- 03 (11) 03/ 15/ 04



the constitution to change to a POW net hod, the Corporation woul d
increase efforts to educate the public.

Senat or Bunde rem nded of the special election held in Septenber
1999 in which voters rejected a proposal to convert to a form of
POW for managi ng the Permanent Fund. He relayed that since that
time, when the subject is addressed, common response is, "Wuat part
of no don't you understand?”

M. Storer wunderstood the concerns. He recalled that the
af orenenti oned advi sory vote was "open-ended" and proposed a payout
of 5.8 percent. He attributed nany reasons for the opposition of
the ball ot proposal. He also realized that a nunber of years had to
pass before the issue of utilizing the Pernmanent Fund earnings for
gover nment spendi ng coul d be reconsidered. He submtted the current
proposal is not a spending plan but rather a spending limt. He
stated the goal is to "nenorialize inflation proofing into the
Constitution" to ensure the viability of the Fund. He admtted
obt ai ni ng voter approval for the POW would be a "big hurdle".

M. Barthol omew added that the public concerns focus on use of the
earni ngs of the Fund and not protection of the Fund. He enphasi zed
the inportant of being clear on this distinction when discussing
the matter. He noted ot her proposals address use of the earnings of
the Fund, but were separate issues fromthe POW nethod of managi ng
the Fund. He told of confusion with "m xed nessages” not clearing
identifying the differences.

Senator Dyson understood that under a POW nethod, a maxi num of
five percent would be available for distribution and that if the
five-year average market value of the fund has only increased four
percent, the anmount available for distribution would be imted to
four percent.

M. Bartholomew clarified that under the current proposal, the
constitution would specify a five-percent payout limt. He rel ayed
t hat discussions of "guard rails" have occurred to further reduce
the percentage available for payout in the event of poor
performance of the Fund. He recommended that if such a nmethod were
instituted, the determ nation should be based on at |east a ten-
year average.

Senator Dyson comrented that the ability to payout from the
principal is the basis of criticisnms of the POW proposal .

M. Storer enphasized this is one "crux of the issue". He renarked

that the decision nmakers i.e., the l|egislature would have the
ability to determ ne whether payouts of five percent or |ess that

SFC- 03 (12) 03/ 15/ 04



anount woul d be made in years when the total market value of the
Fund has failed to increase by at |least five percent. He stressed
that the legislature would have the ability to determ ne what
action is in the best interest of the State. He noted that
currently, the legislature does not have this option.

Senat or Dyson reiterated that the argunent remains that under the
present law, the legislature is unable to appropriate funds from
the principal of the Fund. He asked whether the proposed
constitutional anmendnment should include a guarantee agai nst draw ng
agai nst the principal.

M. Storer advised against tying payouts to performance of the
Fund. He relayed that "discussions” have been held with "sone
elected officials,” suggesting the adoption of statutory
"guidelines that would give the legislative body the insight to
determne that inflection point" as to whether the entire five
percent should be utilized.

Senat or Dyson gave a hypothetical situation in which the Fund has
had four percent growh for several years, and the legislature
chose to appropriate four percent to payout of dividends and no
ot her purpose. In this scenario, he pointed out, the Fund woul d not
be inflation proofed, regardless of the actual rate of inflation.

M. Barthol omew stressed that worst case scenari os nust be used for
conparison. He agreed that wunder the POW nethod, inflation
proofing would not automatically occur; however he pointed out that
in instances of no earnings, inflation proofing would not occur
under the current fornmula either. He remarked that wunder the
current system the |legislature has no option to expend funds from
the Fund in years of down markets. He enphasized that in a bad
market, the |legislature would have the ability to spend funds under
POW.

M. Bartholonew |listed three issues that nust be understood by the
public in considering this matter. He stated that the current
formula is "broken" and is not prepared for down nmarkets because
the earnings and the principal have been comm ngl ed. He expl ai ned
that $5 billion in earnings that should be available to "cushion"
the payout in down years have instead been deposited into the
princi pal and thus "taken off the table.” He opined that the risk
of spending down fromthe principal during down years under a POW
nethod is "far outwei ghed" by the provisions of the current fornula
that allow | arger appropriations fromthe earnings reserve fund in
strong years. He admtted the tradeoff in adopting a POW
nmet hodol ogy and stated the issue is which nethod provides the
greatest protection. He relayed that the Trustees' position is that

SFC- 03 (13) 03/ 15/ 04



POW provi des the greatest protection.

Senator Dyson clarified that under POW there is no earnings
reserve account.

M . Barthol onew af firmed.

Senator O son asked if the POW is such a val uabl e managenent t ool
why the Corporation did not aggressively pursue a change before and
instead wait until the State was in the current fiscal situation.
He remarked that the public is wary of this proposition, partially
due to the timng.

M. Storer responded that in 1994 a POW net hod of payout was first
proposed. He continued that this option was "defined well before"
the State incurred its current fiscal problens, although it has
taken time for the issue to receive attention. He viewed the
negative coments positively, because it shows that people are
interested in the matter.

Senator O son asked of instances of funds or endownents
i npl ementing a POW systemthat resulted in negative situations in
whi ch the decision to inplenment POW was regretted.

M. Storer referenced a study reporting that 85 percent of
participants in an association of college and university business
offices utilizes some variant of POW. He clarified that the
decision to inplenent POW was not regretted, rather "they got
caught up in overspending.”" He told of one university beginning a
| arge capital project during the bull market, and now nust proceed
with the project despite generating |ess incone.

SENATOR BERT STEDVAN clarified the termnology used at this
heari ng, notably the inplication that a POW net hod woul d noderni ze
t he Permanent Fund. He was under the inpression that a formof POW
has been used by ot her endowrent funds for many years.

M. Storer informed that the first fund to adopt a POW net hod was
the Ford Foundation in 1968. He said few funds adopted this nethod
during the 1970s because nbst were invested conservatively during
that tinme. However, he noted nore funds converted to POW during
the 1980s and that sone universities utilize conplex formnulas.

Senat or St edman pointed out the this proposal woul d not therefore
"take the Permanent Fund to the |leading edge." He clarified that as
currently structured, the managenent of the Permanent Fund is
behi nd nmet hods enpl oyed by ot her endowrent funds, such as Harvard.

SFC- 03 (14) 03/ 15/ 04



M. Storer remarked that the Al aska Permanent Fund renmains one of
the nost conservatively managed endownents. He noted that
retirement funds are not nanaged wth a POW system because of
obligations to retirees. He also stated that unlike other public
funds, the Permanent Fund is limted in how the funds could be
i nvest ed.

Senator Stedman reiterated that if POW were adopted for the
Per manent Fund, the managenent would still be "no where near
| eadi ng edge. "

M. Storer characterized the nmanagenent system as "catching up"” to
t he net hods enpl oyed for other funds.

Senator Stedman asked if other public entities in Al aska utilize a
POW net hodol ogy.

M. Storer gave the University of Alaska Foundation and the
Muni ci pality of Anchorage as exanpl es.

Senat or St edman asked current market value of the principal of the
Per manent Fund.

M. Storer responded that the total of contributions, inflation

proofing and special appropriations is approximtely $23 billion.
He also stated that if a POW nethodology were in place,
approximately $1.3 billion would be avail able for payout.

Senat or Stedman asked how long during a "normal bear market" it
woul d take before the market val ue cal cul ati on "di pped into" what
is currently considered the principal of the Fund.

M. Storer replied that there is no "normal bear market" due to
many variables and he could not therefore calculate when the
t hreshol d woul d be reached. He rem nded that in March of 2000 the
Fund contained a "cushion" of $8 billion, which was utilized to
inflation proof the Fund and to payout three "substantial"
di vidends. He stated that if the entire $8 billion had been paid
out in dividends during one year, no funds would have been
avai l abl e for the next three or four years for dividends.

Senator Stedman surmsed it would take longer to "dip" into the
princi pal under the current Fund nmanagenent than under a POW
managenent .

M. Storer agreed. He furthered that "human behavi or” woul d becone

| ess of a factor under a POW nethod and that it would be "easier
to stay the course” in operating the Fund. He reiterated that past

SFC- 03 (15) 03/ 15/ 04



discipline has allowed excess earnings to be "captured" and
deposited into the corpus of the Fund, but he questioned whet her
di fferent nenberships on the Trustee Board woul d denonstrate the
sanme behavi or.

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS asked why the POW nmanagenent system shoul d
be stipulated in the Al aska Constitution rather than State statute.

M. Storer responded that the original intent of the Trustees was
to institute the nanagenent provisions into the Constitution
because statutes could be changed w t hout voter approval.

M. Barthol omew furthered that "near term down markets" could not
be addressed in statute if the excess earnings have been "Il ocked
up." He explained that dividends could not be distributed if this
occurred. He stated that it is necessary to elimnate the earnings
reserve fund and principal and incorporate both into one fund,
whi ch nust be done constitutionally.

Senat or @uess countered that the earnings of the Permanent Fund are
al ways available for the legislature to appropriate and are
therefore not "l ocked up".

M. Barthol onew replied that the proposed POW assures that the
situation of the year 2002, in which the earnings reserve fund was
al nost depleted, would not occur. He reported that the earnings
reserve fund bal ance was al nost zero because a dividend was paid
the prior year, stock market earnings reduced and the |egislature
"swept" $250 million to the principal of the Fund in 1999. He
informed that if the bear market had continued another three
nonths, no funds would have been available to pay dividends in
2003. He stated that under the POW nethod, this situation would
not have occurred because dividends coul d have been paid utilizing
the principle of the Fund. He qualified that if the goal is to
al ways maintain the current "concept of principal"”, statutory
provi sion could be enacted to ensure it. He cautioned that the risk
of little to no payout would renain.

Senator Bunde clarified asked if the proposal would place the
current practice of transferring funds fromthe Permanent Fund to
the State general fund into the Constitution, rather than current
statute.

M. Barthol onew affirned.
SENATOR TOM WAGONER asked if the Legislature passed a resolution to

place a POW initiative on the ballot, if the intent of the
Corporation is to advertise in support of the POW nethod and

SFC- 03 (16) 03/ 15/ 04



educate the public as to its nerits. He asked the source of funding
for these efforts.

M. Bartholonew told of funding requests before the legislative
finance commttees. He noted if these funds were not appropriated,
the Corporation would continue the current practice of accepting
speaking invitations and explaining the issue in those foruns.

Senat or Wagoner clarified the funding request would appropriate
funds from the Pernmanent Fund earnings reserve account for the
advertising and education activities.

Senator Bunde ascertained the prinmary opposition to the POW
pr oposal is primarily generated from the "Just Say No"
organi zation. He recogni zed concerns wth utilizing earnings of the
Fund for State services, but reiterated that these earnings are
al ready being spent. He asked if the Corporation has considered how
to address this organization.

M. Storer relayed that the Corporation has requested to speak to
the "Just Say No" organi zation and has not received a response. He
expressed interest in speaking to its nenbers, as he said the group
has rai sed inportant questions.

SENATOR HOLLIS FRENCH referenced earlier conversations between
hinmself and M. Storer regarding concerns about the long-term
effects of inflation. He predicted the possibility of "entering a
new financial era"” simlar to the "hyperinflationary tines of the
early 1970s". He surmsed that if the "best and brightest financial
m nds" were asked four years ago whether the federal budget could
revert froma $.5 trillion projected budget surplus to $.5 trillion
budget deficit, these experts would have answered it could not
possibly occur. He was therefore concerned about unforeseen
consequences. He recomended inserting "either the difference
between the rate of return and the rate of inflation" to Section 2
of the resolution on page 2, line 3, anmending Article I X, sec. 15
of the Constitution, to read as foll ows.

(b) To protect the permanent fund from the effects of
inflation and thereby assure that the real value of the
permanent fund wll be preserved over the long term
appropriations fromthe permanent fund for a fiscal year may
not exceed either the difference between the rate of return
and the rate of inflation, or five percent of the average of
t he market val ues of the fund on June 30 for the first five of
the six fiscal years immedi ately preceding that fiscal year

He surmsed this would provide assurances for years with |esser

SFC- 03 (17) 03/ 15/ 04



earni ngs. He asked whether the Trustees have considered a "cl osing-
of f mechani sm that would renove the decision fromthe legislature
to determ ne appropriation anmounts in the event that earnings were
| ess than five percent. He expressed concern that the public would
consider the current proposal a guarantee of payout and that the
| egi sl ature woul d have difficulty appropriating a | esser anount.

M. Storer infornmed that two situations of "hyper-inflation”
occurred in the past. He cautioned against "conpeting conplex
formul as. "

M. Barthol onew enphasized that whether instituted in the
Constitution or in statute, payout cal cul ati ons shoul d not be nade
based on annual earnings. He recommended against a year-to-year
anal ysis and instead recommended a structure based over a period of
time.

Co-Chair Wl ken ordered the bill HELD in Committee.

#

ADJ CQURNIVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 03: 05 PM

SFC- 03 (18) 03/ 15/ 04



